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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members of
Trophic Wellness Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the attached financial statements of Trophic Wellness Private Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2022, the profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its 

cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial 

Statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include 
the Financial Statements and our Independent Auditors' Report thereon. Our opinion oh the 
Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not and will not express 
any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
Other Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information 
is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to 
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, finaricial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company arid for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain, 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

;

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
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user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the attached Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes.in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply vyith the Ind AS specified 

under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2022, taken on record by the: Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the ’adequacy of the internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses

a.

b.

c.

d. In our

e.

f.

£
S

bai *

'S.9-.
^ffOACCO^

mailto:nvc@nvc.in


■*.

Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

903-904, 9th Floor, Raheja Chambers, 213, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021. Tel.: 6752 7100 Fax : 6752 7101 E-mail: nvc@nvc.in

an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
. Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer. Note 34 to the financial 
statements,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were material foreseeable losses,

There are no amounts that are required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entities ("intermediaries") with the understanding whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any person or 
entity including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

c. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

g-

h.

ii.

iii.

iv.

I

I

£vk

mailto:nvc@nvc.in


t

Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

903-904, 9th Floor, Raheja Chambers, 213, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021. Tel.: 6752 7100 Fax : 6752 7101 E-mail: nvc@nvc.in

believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above , 
contain any material misstatement.

v. There are no events of dividend declared and paid by the Company during the 
year until the date of this report, hence compliance with provisions of section 
123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No- 106971W

Mumbai ) '*
o

JIL^- tc
N Jayendren 
Partner
Membership No. 40441 
Mumbai, Dated: May 16, 2022 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of Trophic Wellness Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our knowledge and information, audit procedures followed by us. according to
the information provided to us by the Company and the examination of the books of account
and records in the normal course of audit, we state that:

(i) a. (A) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment 
and relevant details of right of use assets.

(B) The company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars 
of intangible assets.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets have been physically 
verified by the management at reasonable intervals and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. Lease agreements for land properties, where the company is the lessee and 
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the company and on 
which building is constructed, we report that title in respect of self-constructed 
building is held in the Company's name.

b. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

c. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2022, for holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 as amended and rules made 
thereunderT

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. On the basis of examination of records, we are of the 
opinion that the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate and 
that no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory 
were noticed on such verification. The discrepancies wherever noted have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account of the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 
in aggregate at any point of time during the year from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence clause 3(ii)(b) of 
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

crores

(iii) (a) The Company during the year has granted unsecured loans to companies, details 
of which are given hereunder.

a Yp 
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.the. Nature of 
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Particulars"- tPi

Aggregate 
amount granted 
provided during the year

5000:00/

-Subsidiaries 
- Joint Ventures

a-

. - Associates 
- Others 5000.00
Balance 
outstanding as at balance 
sheet date in respect of 
such cases 
- Subsidiaries 
-Joint, Ventures 
-Associates .
-Others ... ,

< ■■■'

:

;; ;5obo.po

(b) The terms, and conditions of the grant of loans are prima.facie not prejudicial to 
the company's interest.

i .

(c) In respect of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal is stipulated. However, 
schedule of payment of interest is not: stipulated in all cases. The repayments 
have generally been regular.except.as detailed hereunder:

' rf .

0

^■Bued.te.
Extent of Re rn arks,'-, 

if any. Name of,the entity 
:*V-vv, rt*. .t

V--
Nipra Packaging Private 
Limited

7-15 Days, . :15/09/202165.00
i’j.'1-

Nipra Packaging Private 
Limited

18/09/2021 : 19-195 Days :200.00

(d) No.amount is overdue for more, than hinety.days as at,thp balance sheet date.

(e) No loan or advance ip the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the 
year, has been: renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue 
of existing loans given to the same parties.except as hereunder:

“ > mm
'W

. 5%250.00Makers 
Laboratories 
Limited .
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(f) The company has hot granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 
repayable on demand or .without.specifying.any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The company has not given any loans, or made any investments, or given any 
guarantees and security to which section 185 applies. In respect of loans given during 
the year the Company has complied with provisions of section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013!

J.1

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts that are deemed 
to be deposits pursuant to sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.: As infprmed tb us,: there, is nd
order that has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law.Tribunal 
of Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other tribunal in respect of the said
sections.

(vi) . The. maintenance of the cost records under the sub-section; (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act,. 2013 has not been prescribed and. hence, clause 3(vij of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order,2020. ismotvapplicable to the Compariy.:

(vii) (a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Goods and Services Act, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added 
Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount 
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues Were outstanding as at March 31, 2022 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have: not been

:

(b) There are
deposited on account of any. dispute except as given below;

Period-tp 
which the

'■-dues (In'.lakhs)' ■' ampunt--.
relates

Forum where 
dispute is 
spending'

Nature of AmountName of' 
statute

VAT/CST
Demand

VAT-Tribunal.36.97 2010.-11Sales Tax (WB)

Commissioner 
; (Appeals)

VAT/CST •. 
Demand ; •;

Sales Tax 
(Punjab)

2011-12 :.99.15

Commissioner
(Appeals)

VAT/CST
Demand

Sales Tax. 
(Punjab)

2013-1412.49

:
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(viii) There are no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which 
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) The company has not taken any loan or other borrowing. Hence clause 3(ix)(a)> 
3(ix)(b), 3(ix)(c), 3(ix)(d), 3(ix)(e) & 3(ix)(f) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 
2020 are not applicable to the Company .

(x) (a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence clause 3(x)(a) 
of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order , 2020 is not applicable to the 
Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment / private placement of 
shares / fully / partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year under 
review.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of 
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been, received during the , year by the 
Company.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) 
of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examination of the proceedings of the 
meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors are concerned. The 
details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements 
as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv) (a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have 
an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(b) The Company did not have an internal audit system forthe period under audit and 
hence clause 3(xiv)(b) of the of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is 
not applicable to the Company .
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(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with its directors and hence clause 3(xv) of the Companies 
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that the 
Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act 1934 and hence sub-clause 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c) of 
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(b) There are two core investment companies within the Group (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, the Company has not 
incurred cash losses during the financial year and the immediate previous financial 
year.

(xvii)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and 
accordingly clause (3)(xviii) of The Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xviii)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and representations and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
company as and when they fall due.

(xix)

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 of the said Act.,Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable for the year.

(xx)
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(b) There are no ongoing projects in respect of CSR activities arid therefore clause 
3(xx)(b) of The Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the 
Company.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants ____
Firm Registration No- 106971M^^^^^\fPt
"NJayendifen 
Partner
Membership No. 40441 
Mumbai, Dated: May 16, 2022 
UDIN : 2_2-(a *4 0 41A1 A3 ^ fl S'fc l
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2ff) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of Trophic Wellness Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under 
Clause Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements 
of Trophic Wellness Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control with reference to .financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls oyer Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of. the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to ah audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
^ internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements 
f_J\ \g\Wluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial£
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Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with 
reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to 
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
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of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No- 106971W

N Jayendrafn 
Partner
Membership No. 40441

'£d acco;

Mumbai, Dated: May 16, 2022 
UDIN :
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U24100MH2010PTC206526 

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2022
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 
2021

As at March 31, 
2022

Note
Particulars No.
ASSETS ' .

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant & equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Other Intangible assets
(d) Right of Use Asset
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Loans 
(ill) Others

(f) Deferred tax assets (net)
(g) Other non-current assets

1,963.15
15.74
25.99
60.25

1,852.38
12.53

3A
38
3C

57.573D

4
0.235,000.00

33.80
5

46.836
•• • 11

539.58147.067
2,651.777,103.35

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others

(c) Other current assets

1,675.721,952.018

40.71
516.96
920.79 
650.66

3,710.12
103.79

4
781.34
36374
253.27

17.34
554.79

9
10
5
6
7

7,618.753,922.49

10,270.5211,025.83Total Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity 

Total Equity

405.00
8,035.93

405.00
9,736.67

12
13 i

8,440.9310,141.67

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liability
(ii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-current liabilities
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

57.4356.9031
14

29.7939.4915j

216.99174.1211
304.21270.51

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Lease liability
(ii) Trade payables

- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
- Others

(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

0.490.5331

58.69 
993.41
6279

132.60
54.70 

222.69

16.38
402.73

53.97
82.43
57.61

16
16
14
17
15
18

1,525.38613.65I
10,270.5211,025.83Total Equity and Liabilities!

Statement of significant accounting policies and othei notes form part of the balancp'SKSbt and statement of profit and loss

Forand on Behalf of the Board of DirectorsAs per our report of even date attached 
For Natvarlal Vepari 8t Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 106971W^S2^

ffP DirectorTvholetime Director 
(DIN 068520661, (DIN 00029067)

I ★
N. JaTehdrjJi 
Partner 
M. No. 40441 
Mumbai: May 16, 2022 . (Chief Executive Officer)
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U24100MH2010PTC206526

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2022
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note 2020-212021-22
No.

i Revenue from Operations
ii' Other Income:
ill Total Income (i + ii)

9,352.17
325.37

10,128.67
153.29

19
20

9,677.54 10,281.96

iv Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 
Purchase of Stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress 
and Stock-in-Trade 
Employee Benefit Expenses 
Finance Cost
Depreciation & Amortisation 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses (iv)

21 852.22
4,421.68

1,100.15
4,478.19
(206.49)

22
2.6323

452.73 443.50
31.79

189.32
1,175.90

24
5.2525

26 192.20
1,478.5927
7,405.29 7,212.36

v Profit Before Tax (iii-iv) 2,272.25 3,069.60

568.23 892.77vi Tax Expense 
1. Current Tax
2.Short / (Excess) tax provision for earlier years 
3. Deferred Tax Liability / (asset)

610.00 586.76
(3.46)

309.47

29

(41.77)

vii Profit for the period (v-vi) 1,704.01 2,176.83

viii Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Actuarial gain/(loss)

Tax Effect Thereon
(b) Fair Value Changes to Investment thru OCI

Tax Effect Thereon
ix Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

(/
;

(4.38) 1.76
(0.51)1.10

i,

(3.27) 1.25

x Total comprehensive Income for the year (vii - ix) 2,178.081,700.75

xi Earnings per Equity Share (For continuing operations): 
Basic (in Rs)
Diluted (in Rs)

30
42.07
42.07

53.75
53.75

lance sheet and statement of profit andStatement of significant accounting policies and other notes form part of 
loss. /

For and on behalf of the Board of DirectorsAs per our report of even date attached 
For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 106971W

0
tM

*" 4
akhi

Wholetime Director 
(DIN 06852066)

Director
(DIN 00029067)

N, Jayendrary 
Partner 
M.No. 40441 
Mumbai: May 16, 2022

ITind 'ate
Executive Officer)
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U24100MH2010PTC20652S 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
A Cash flow from Operating activities

1) Net profit before taxation and extraordinary item 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Profit on Sale of Investment 
Interest on income tax
Remeasurement of Investment held on FVTPL 
Interest Income on Financial Assets at amortised cost 
Rental Expense on financial Assets at amortised cost 
Finance Cost on lease Liability 
Interest Income

2,272.25 3,069.60

192.20
(0.40)

189.32
(41.84)
26.54
0.04

(2.35) (2.25)
1.81 1.78
5.21 5.25

(109.20)(322.30)

3,139.242) Operating profit before working capital changes 2,146.41

Working Capital Changes:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 
(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables & Advances 
Increase / (Decrease) in Sundry Creditors & Provisions 

3) Cash generated from operation 
Income Tax (Paid) / Refund (net)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities -1

(268.13)
662.53
285.40

(276.29)
(539.92)
(751.23)

3,819.03
(435.88)

578.97
(810.47)
(231.50) 3,383.15

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments ind CWIP 
Purchase/redemotion of mutual funds units

- Purchases
- Redemption

Fixed deposit HDFC Ltd - (Deposit)/ Redemption 
Loans Given 
Repayment of Loan 
Interest received

(39.07) 15.60

(7,853.54)
8,985.30

(3,690.00)
(500.00)

41.11
3,692.40

(5,000.00)
650.00
335.71 88.92

(319.85) (2,953.71)Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities - II 
Cash Flow after Investing Activities - III = (I + II) (551.35) 429.44

C Cash Flow from Financing activities 
Payment of lease liability 
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities - IV

(S.70) (5.70)
(5.70)(5.70)

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B) (557.05) 423.74

497.05
920.79

920.79
363.74

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

(557.05) 423.74

Components of Cash 8i Cash Equivalents: 
Cash Balances 
Balances with Banks

0.220.34
920.57363.40
920.79363.74

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behaAf of the Board of DirectorsAs per our report of even date 
' For Natvarlal Vepari & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 106971V

Prakash KothanArvind Sakhi
Directorlet!me Director
(DIN 00029067)(DIN 06852066)

N. Jayendrqji 
Partner 
M.No. 40441 
Mumbai: May 16, 2022'

ylipd'Sarwate 
!nief Executive Officer)
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN:U24100MH2010PTC206526

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Equity Share Capital
Particulars No. of shares Amount
Equity share capital Subscribed and fully Paid up of face value Rs 10.00 each
Balance at April 1,2020 40,50,000 405.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021 405.0040,50,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year i

Balance as at March 31, 2022 40,50,000 405.00

Other Equity
Other Equity Other

Comprehensi
Particulars Total EquityReserves and Surplus

RetainedSecurities Remeasurem 
ent ofpremium earnings
(2,005.00)Balance at April 1, 2020 1,738.35 5,857.856,124.50

Profit for the period
Actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity (net of tax thereon)

2,176.83
1.25

2,176.83
1.25

(2,005.00)Balance as on March 31,2021 6,124.50 3,916.43 8,035.93
Profit for the period
Actuarial gain/(loss) on gratuity (net of tax thereon)

1,704.01
(3.27)

1,704.01
(3-27)

(2,005.00)Balance as on March 31, 2022 6,124.50 . 5,617.17 9,736.67

Loss of Rs. 3.27 lacs and gain of Rs. 1.25 lacs on remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (net of tax) is recognized as a part of retained 
earnings for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement, statement of significant/account^ng policies and the other notes forms an 
integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended MarchJLL 2022

n behalf of the Board of DirectorsAs per our report of even date attached 
For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 106971

I®
(Or anJ

Wholetime Director Director
(DIN 00029067)(DIN 06852066)

— x^'i hT Jayendrpn 
Partner 
M.No. 40441 
Mumbai: May 16, 2022

iMiliht£85rwate 
(Chief Executive Officer)



TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN U24100MH2010PTC206526

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the standalone 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Corporate Information
Incorporated in the year 2010, Trophic Wellness Private Limited is involved in development 
and promoting of world class nutritional and wellness products. It aspires to take nutrition to 
the higher levels of quality and effectiveness. Nutricharge is a registered trade mark of Trophic 
Wellness and the brand promises high quality potentially beneficial Nutritional supplements as 
also valuable insights to people for obtaining a balanced nutrition so as to stay healthy and fit. 
The financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorised 
for issue in accordance with the resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors 
held on May 16 2022.

1.

2. Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following:

a. certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at 
fair value; and

b. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 
standard is initially adopted ora revision to an existing accounting standard requires a 
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the 
nearest lacs, except otherwise stated.

2.2 Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumption

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates, 
judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management 
becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are 

. .reflected in the financial statement in the period in which changes are made and if 
' material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

5| ^nanc‘a* statements require management to make judgments, estimates and
*Vr^r ■ /»// assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
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and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. 
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

b. Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of 
the defined benefit obligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected 
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that 
may differ from actual developments in the future. These interalia include the 
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to 
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions 
reviewed at each reporting date.

c. Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of 
each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation 
expense in future periods.

d. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

For property, plant and equipment and intangibles, an assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable or previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or 
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there 
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

e. Inventories

The Company estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into 
account estimated selling price, estimated cost of completion, estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, obsolescence considering the past trend. Inventories are 
written down to NRV where such NRV is lower than their cost.

f. Recognition and measurement of other Provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of 
the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances 
known at the closing date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may 
therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

are
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2.3 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to 
time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

• Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the 
acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed must meet 
the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do 
not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect 
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

• Ind AS 16-Proceeds before intended use

The amendments meinly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, 
plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company 
is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales 
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the 
amendments to have any material impact in its recognition of its property, plant and 
equipment in its financial statements.

• Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs 
that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be 
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) 
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The 
amendment is essentially a clarification, and the Company does not expect the 
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

• Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the '10 percent' 
test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company 
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial 
statements.

• Ind AS 106 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold 
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the 
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

i. Current and non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle.

ComPany Presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet .based on current/non- 
* current classification.y], . y^JJ '★ V
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An asset is current when /

- It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
•Av-',

or

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

- It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when :

- It is expected to be setthd in normal operating cycle, or

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non- 
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

ii. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) All .items of prope. ^y, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
depreciation. Cost of acquisition comprises its purchase price including import duties 
and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discount and rebates 
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
satisfy the recognition criteria of Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, Plant and 
Equipment.
Capital Work In Progress represents expenditure incurred on capital assets that are 
under construction or are pending capitalisation and includes project expenses pending 
allocation. Project expenses pending allocation are apportioned to the Property, Plant 
and Equipment of the project proportionately on capitalisation.
Cost of borrowing for assets taking substantial time to be ready for use is capitalised for 
the period up to the time the asset is ready for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
The residual useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment is reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted if required in the depreciation rates.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)
Depreciation on all assets of the Company is charged on straight line method over the 
useful life of assets mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies Act ,2013 or the useful 
life previously assessed by the management based on technical review whichever is 
lower for the proportionate period of use during the year. Intangible assets are 

RJU&n&all+11 amortisecl over the economic useful life estimated by the management.
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The management's estimated useful life/useful life as per schedule II whichever is 
lower for the various tangible assets are as follows:

Assets Estimated useful 
life (Years)

Leasehold Land Period of lease

Buildings 28 to 58 years

Plant and equipments 7 to 20 years

Office and other equipments +5 years

Computers 3 to 6 years

Furniture and other fixtures 6 to 10 years

Vehicles 6 years

iii. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amc rtized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a 
straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of 
an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of 
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of 
the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. 
Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial 
year end.

The management has estimated the economic useful life for the various intangible assets as 
follows:

#■

Brand/ Trade Mark 10
Software - 4

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset.is derecognised.

iv. Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products and services. Revenue 
from sale of goods is recognised net of returns, product expiry claims and discounts.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligations upon transfer of 
control of promised oroducts or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or 
services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach:

1. Identify the contract with a customer;
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
3. Determine the transaction price;
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
5. Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

a.
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Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance 
obligations satisfied over time if any one of the following criteria is met. In such cases, 
revenue is recognized overtime.

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 
Company's performance; or

2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer 
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

3. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to 
the Company and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for 
performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue 
is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Where Revenue is recognized over time, the amount of revenue is determined on the 
basis of contract costs incurred in relation to estimated contract expenses.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a 
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and 
loss.

b. In case of export benefits which are in the nature of neutralisation of duties and taxes 
are grouped under material costs. All other export incentives are grouped under other 
operating revenue.

c. Revenue in respect of insurance/other claims, commission, etc. are recognised only 
when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

d. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through . 
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest 
rate (EIR)lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and 
loss.

■>

Borrowingsv.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying 
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are 
incurred.

vi. Impairmentof assets

Carrying amount of Tangible assets, Intangible assets. Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint 
Venture and Associates (which are carried at cost) are tested for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of
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disposal, recent market cransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be 
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the 
cash inflows from other assets or Company's assets (cash-generating units). Non- financial 
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal 
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

vii. Leases

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing 
arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. 
The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the 
use of an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits 
from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the 
right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus 
any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost 
less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted 
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using 
the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or 
useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that 
are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that 
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

viii. Inventories

Items of inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value as given 
below:

Raw
MaterialsandPackingMaterials

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However materials 
and other items held for use in the production of 
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to 
be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on First In First 
Out basis.

Work-in-
processandFinishedGoods

At lower of cost (material cost net of refundable taxes, 
labour cost and all manufacturing goverheads) and net 
realizable value.

TradedGoods Traded Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value.

The factors that the Company considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, 
obsolete and other non-saleable inventory in determining net realisable value include 
a®e‘n® inventorY* estimated shelf life, price changes, introduction of competitive new 

) products and such other related factors.
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Cost in case of Raw material and Packing material, Stores and Spare and Traded Goods 
include purchase cost net of refundable taxes and other overheads incurred in bringing 
such items of inventory to its present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalentsix.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other 
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank 
overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

x. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provision

A Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
Where there, is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent 
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic 
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the 
change occurs.

xi. Retirement and other employee benefits 

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. 
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an 
expense when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

Gratuity, a post-employment defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an 
actuarial valuation made at the end of each year/period on projected unit credit method.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the 
projected unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, 
the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance 
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period 
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset.

_ ^ • Compensated absences

T*ie Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and 
f )) non'accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is 

v'tX /Tl. yJ»JI determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance
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sheet date using Projected Unit Credit method on the additional amount expected to be 
paid/ availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance 
sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the 
period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are 
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the 
expected cost of ex-gratia, bonus and performance incentive are recognised in the period 
in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

xii. Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:
i. The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial 

statements are presented in Indian rupees.
ii. Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate on the 

date of transaction where the settlement of such transactions are taking place at a later 
date. The exchange gain/loss on settlement / negotiation during the year is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. In case of advance payment for purchase of assets/ 
goods/services and advance receipt against sales of products/services, all such 
purchase/sales transaction are recorded at the rate at which such advances are 
paid/received.

iii. Foreign currency monetary transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are 
converted at year-end rates. The resultant gain or loss is accounted for in the 
statement of profit and loss.

iv. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost denominated in foreign 
currency are translated using exchange rate at the date of transaction.

v.The overseas trading offices are non-integral operations and the overseas non trading 
offices are integral operations and are accounted accordingly.

*
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xiii. Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each 
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

► In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest.

xiv. Financial instruments

a. Financial assets & financial liabilities 
Initial recognition and measurement



All financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is treated as cost of 
acquisition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way 
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four 
categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, except for contingentconsideration recognized in a business combination which 
is subsequently measured at fair value through profitand loss. For trade and other 
payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying 
amountsapproximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated 
with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 7 details how the 
entity determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade 
receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is de-recognised only when

• The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

• Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 
cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the entity has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is 
not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the 
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains 

v control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuin§ involvement in the financial asset.

./i • Ao\\
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A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

b. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, 
interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks, respectively.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair 
value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

xv. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before 
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature 
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on 
the available information.

xvi. Goods and service tax input credit

Input tax credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service 
received is.accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilising the 
credits.

xvii. Taxes

;

Tax expenses comprise Current Tax and Deferred Tax :

a. Current tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current 
period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction 
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the 
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting 
period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and associates operate 
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts 
expected to be. paid to the tax authorities.

b. Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary 
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

.. amounts in the standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are 
•. not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income 

^ tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transactionz( Mutpo3' *
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affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted 
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses 
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
temporary differences and losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or 
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

For items recognised in OCI or equity, deferred / current tax is also recognised in OCI or 
equity.

c. MATcredit
Minimum Alternate 'iax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and 
loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to 
the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the Company will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be 
carried forward. The MAT credit to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the 
Company will utilize the credit is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and 
corresponding debit is done to the deferred tax asset as unused tax credit.

xviii. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year by 
the weighted: average dumber of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the 
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

!■



- - TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U24100MH2010PTC206526

to financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2022 
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Notes

3A PROPERTY. PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Office and 

Other 
Equipment

Furniture and 
Fixtures

Plant and 
Equipment

TotalVehiclesBuildingParticulars

GROSS BLOCK_________
As on April 1, 2020
Additions___________
Disposals/Adjustments 
As on March 31, 2021 
Additions_________ _
Disposals/Adjustments
As on March 31, 2022

2,611.48
111.96

30.3258.671,648.00
98.17

874.49
2.919.131.75

2,723.44
52.76

33.239.1360.421,746.17
30.40

874.49
19.41 0.172.78

2,776.2033.409.1363.201,776.57893.90

ACCUMULATED DPR/AMORT. 600.968.8140.60459.9991.56As on April 1, 2020
For the year 2020-21

159.332.540.367.72118.0930.62
Disposals/Adjustments 760.2911.350.3648.32578.08122.18As on March 31, 2021 163.531.445.61122.8930.84For the year 2021-22
Disposals/Adjustments 923.8214.101.8053.93700.97153.02As on March 31, 2022

1,963.1521.888.7712.101,168.09752.31Net Block As On March 31, 2021
Net Block As On March 31, 2022

1,852.3819.307.339.281,075.60740.88

of assessment of any indication of impairment to its property plant and 
such exercise it is determined that there has

i) The Company has carried out the exercise
equipment as on the Balance Sheet date. Pursuant to 
impairment to its property, plant and equipment during the year.

been no

3B CWIP consists of

Plant and Electrical
Fittings

TotalBuildingParticulars Equipment
101.15

14.95
100.36

5.451.3194.39As on April 1, 2020
Additions
Capitalization
As at 31st March 2021
Additions
Capitalization
As at 3ist March 2022

2.8712.08
94.39 5.450.52

15.743.6612.08
0.450.45
3.663.66

12.5312.53

CWIP Ageing Schedule 
As at March 31. 2022 TotalProjects

temporarily
suspended

Projects in 
progress

Individual
Assets

CWIP for a period of

0.450.45Less than 1 year 12.0812.081-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years 12.5312.53Total

As ot March 31. 2021
TotalProjects

temporarily
suspended

Projects in 
progress

Individual
Assets

CWIP for a period of

14.9514.95Less than lyear 0.790.791-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years 15.7415.74Total
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3C OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS mMfF Brand/r’i 
s.Tradelviark’‘

4. - ■•*.".

'Software 4,
; •: >> .1 a'

GROSS BLOCK
304.59299.06S.53As on April 1, 2020

Additions
Disposals/Adjustments

304.59299.065.53As on March 31, 2021
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
As on March 31, 2022 304.59299.065.53

ACCUMULATED DPR/AMORT.
251.30246.844.46As on April 1,2020

27.3126.241.07For the year 2020-21
Disposals/Adjustments

278.61273.085.53As on March 31, 2021
25.9925.99For the year 2021-22

Disposals/Adjustments
304.59299.065.53As on March 31, 2022

25.9925.99Net Block As On March 31, 2021
Net Block As On March 31, 2022

3D RIGHT OF USE

Land s./TTotal j:eSSag^j}.Partic~ulars CS'-J-Vk
GROSS BLOCK

65.4165.41As on April 1, 2020
Additions>

t-ft. Disposals/Adjustments
65.4165.41i As on March 31, 2021

fr Additions •
i:*' Disposals/Adjustments

As on March 31, 2022ifi 65.4165.41

$ ■' ACCUMULATED DPR/AMORT.
s 2.48As on April 1, 2020 '

For the year 2020-21 2.482.48
0.20Disposals/Adjustments
5.16As on March 31, 2021
2.68For the year 2021-22

Disposals/Adjustments
As on March 31, 2021 7.84

60.2560.25Net Block As On March 31, 2021 
Net Block As On March 31, 2022 57.5757.57



TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U24100MHZ010PTC206526

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2022 
(All figures are Rupees in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

4 Financial Assets - Investments As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021

i

2022Particulars

1 Current Investments
Investment in Mutual fund 
Total

40.71
40.71

2 Non-Current Investment 
2A Investments at fair value through PCI (fully paid)

AmountName of the Body Corporate No. Of SharesSr. Relationship
No. 31/03/202131/03/202231/03/2022 I 31/03/2021

Unquoted equity shares 
Panjon Pharma Ltd.

20,00,00020,00,000Others1 25.87%25.87%

Total

III -In the year 2019-20, due to continued non-a.ailabitty of the financial statements and there being no further obligations as a shareholder, the 
CwL considered the fair e.lu, of in,,.,men, a.Ni, and according,, accounted the same under Other Comorehen,,,. Income ,n .he 
said financial statements. The fair value hierarchy for this valuation change is 3 based on unobservable inputs.

Aggregate value of investments 31/03/202231/03/2022
Particulars
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

2B Current Investment AmountNo. Of Units
if' Sr. [Name of the Mutual Fund Scheme 31/03/202131/03/202231/03/202131/03/2022No.

Quoted investment______________ ;___________
Investments at fair value through P&L (fully paid)
Investment in Mutual Fund___________________
Kotak Liquid Fund Regular Plan - Growth

’■■■■ ■■ A. 40.71983.11
40.71983.11

Total Current Investments

Aggregate value of investments■>f 31/03/202131/03/2022
Particulars 40.71
Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

40.71
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN UZ4100MHZ010PTC206526

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2022 
(All figures are Rupee?in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

5 Financial Assets - Loans 
Pa rticulars______

As at March 31,2021
Current

As at March 31,2022 
Non-Current Non-CurrentCurrent

Loans (Unsecured at Amortised Cost)
- Employees
- Others
- Related Parties

0.660.233.27
650.00250

5,000.00

650.660.23253.275,000.00Total
31/03/202131/03/2022

5,000.00(a) Details of Loans to Related Parties 
Lyka Laboratories Limited

(b) Disclosures under section 186(4) of The Companies Act 2013

5,000.00

As at March 31,2021As at March 31, 2022
Nature of 

Transaction
PurposeAmountPurposeAmount

Name of the Company
Business5.000.00 BusinessLoanLyka Laboratories Limited

6 Financial Assets- Others 
Particulars______

As at March 31, 2021
Current

As at March 31,2022
Current Non-CurrentNon-Current

(a) Deposits with others
Considered good 

Interest on deposit receivable 
Term Deposits with banks (FD having more than 12 
Deposit with HDFC Limited

30.3427.94
20.121.186.181.71

15.3111.164.15
3,690.00

I 3,710.1246.8317.3433.80j Total

ernment authorities and / or as margin for guarantees issued by banks to various Authorities.: # Fixed deposits are lying with gov

Financial Assets lUnsecured considered goods unless otherwise stated)7 Other Non-
Particulars

As at March 31,2021
Current

As at March 31, 2022
Current Non-CurrentNon-Current

14.27 5.14
" (i) Capital Advances 

(ii) Other Advances 
(Hi) Advance to employee
(iv) Deposits with Govt, departments
(v) Prepaid expenses
(vi) Prepaid Rent
(vii) Balance with Tax Authorities
(viii) Advance to suppliers (Refer note (a) below)
(ix) Other Receivable
(x) Advance against disputed demand (Refer note (b) below)
(xi) Prepaid taxes (Net of Provisions)

Total

0.03
0.861.02

8.468.71
10.580.1416.380.06

1.310.941.883.11 65.24
10.65
15.15

17.88
428.66

72.21
449.93

13.34

17.88

33.06
45.30

37.23
65.80 103.79539.58554.79147.06

Advance, „ .nppdec -nde , o,« «, ,P, « ««« p,« „ =

demand raised on VAT assessment against which the Comgany^hasfrom them. .
(b) Advance against disputed demand includes the payment made against the 

paid Rs. 37.23 Lacs (PY: Rs 33.06 lacs) in protest as an advance .

A.
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8 Inventories As at March 31,As at March 31,

20212022Particulars

I) Raw Materials and components 
In hand 
In Transit

ii) Packing Materials and components 
In hand

iii) Finished Goods 
In Transit 
In Hand

iv) Stock-in-trade 
In hand

v) Work in Progress 
In hand
Total ~

The disclosure of inventories recognised as an expense in accordance with paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follow^ ^ ^

253.39
195.84

333.61
414.45

38.3118.40

317.93232.60

848.32940.97

21.9311.98
1,675.721,952.01

As at March 31,
20212022Particulars

5,391.235,299.02
(i) Amount of inventories recognised as an expense during the period.
(ii) Amount of write - down of inventories recognised as an expense during the period.

5,391.235,299.02
Total

g Financial Assets - Trade receivables (Unsecured at amortised cost) As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2022Particulars

516.96781.34
Considered good
Total

516.96781.34

e) Since the
receivables the

b) The Company has had no history

Credit Loss.

i
i
!

c) As at March 31,2022 TotalUndisputed
Credit impairedSignificant

increase in credit
Considered Good

Range of O/s period
risk

Unbilled 
Not Due
less than 6 months 
6 months -1 year
1- 2 year
2- 3 year 
> 3 years

757.95
23.18

757.95
23.18

0.210.21

781.34781.34
Total

As of March 31,2021 TotalUndisputed
credit impairedSignificant

increase in credit
Considered Good

Range of O/s period
risk

516.46Unbilled 
Not Due
less than 6 months 
6 months -1 year
1- 2 year
2- 3 year 
>3 years

516.46
0.150.15

0.31
0.04

516.96
Total

ffmm :

z★ %
a



10 Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021Particulars 2022
■V • • * > ■**.*'Kr . *

Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts
Deposit with original maturity of less than three 

months 
Cash on hand
Total

21.57363.40

899.00
0.220.34

920.79363.74 I

11 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Net As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2022Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities on account of
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Right to use Asset

(216.37)
(0.68)

(181.21)
(0.03)

Deferred tax asset on account of 
MTM loss on Financial asset 
Remeasurement of Financial Assets 
Employees Benefits 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

0.06
1.57
5.56

(216.99)(174.12)

12 Equity Share Capital As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2022

Particulars
i) Authorised Capital

50,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
500.00500.00

iwi) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
40,50,000 (March 31, 2021: 40,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

405.00405.00

405.00405.00
Total

Disclosures:
i) Reconciliation of Shares

As at March 31,2021As at March 31, 2022-
AmountNumbersParticulars AmountNumbers

405.0040,50,000405.0040,50,000
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Shares issued during the year 405.0040,50,000405.0040,50,000Shares outstanding at the end of the year

ii) Details of Shareholding in excess of 5% As at March 31,2021As at March 31,2022Name of Shareholder
%Number of shares%Number of shares

3912615,90,00052.3521,20,000
2,50,000
2,30,000
2,20,000
1,90,900

Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
Fashion Suiting's Pvt. Ltd.
Panjon Pharma Ltd.
Paschim Chemicals Private Limited 
Milind Sarwate
Saraswati Entertainment Pvt. Ltd.

6.17
5.682,30,0005.68

5.44
5.272,13,400

6,80,000
4.71

16.79

to one vote per share In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
Company after payment of external liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by thesharglders.
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iv) Shareholding of Promoters
(a) shares held by promoters as at March 31,2022

Shares held by Promotors
% of change 

% of total Shares during the year
As at March 31, 2021As.at March 31, 2022Promoter Name

No. of SharesNo. of Shares % of total Shares

33.33%39.26%
5.68%
4.94%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.47%

16.79%

15,90,000
2,30,000
2,00,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,00,000
6,80,000

52.35%
5.68%
5.43%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.47%

21,20,000
2,30,000
2,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,00,000

1 M/s. Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
2 M/s Panjon Pharma Ltd.
3 M/s Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
4 Mr. Praveen Kataria
5 Mr. Hemant Kataria
6 Mr. Kantilal Kataria
7 Mr. Arvind Kataria
8 M/s. Nirmal Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
9 Saraswati Entertainment Pvt. Ltd.

10.00%

-100.00%

*T
(b) Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2021

Shares held by Promotors
% of change 

% of total Shares during the year
As at March 31,2020As at March 31, 2021Promoter Name

No. of SharesNo. of Shares % of total Shares

103.85%19.26%
5.68%
4.94%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.47%

16.79%
20.00%

7,80,000
2,30,000
2,00,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,00,000
6,80,000
8,10,000

39.26%
5.68%
4.94%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.96%
2.47%

16.79%

15,90,000
2,30,000
2,00,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,20,000
1,00,000
6,80,000

1 M/s. Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
2 M/s Panjon Pharma Ltd.
3 M/s Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.
4 Mr. Praveen Kataria
5 Mr. Hemant Kataria
6 Mr. Kantilal Kataria
7 Mr. Arvind Kataria
8 M/s. Nirmal Advisory Pvt. Ltd.
9 Saraswati Entertainment Pvt. Ltd.
10 Brand Equity Treaties Ltd.

Note: The percentage shareholding above has been computed considering outstanding number of shares as at year end

-100.00%

13 Other Equity
'W As at March 31,As at March 31,

2022 2021Particulars

6,124.50
3,916.43

(2,005.00)

6,124.50
5,617.17

(2,005.00)

(a) Securities Premium Account
(b) Retained Earnings
(c) OCI Reserves 

Total

*
8,035.939,736.67

a) Security Premium Account:
Securities premium account comprises of premium on issue of shares. The reserve 
Companies Act, 2013.

is utilised in accordance with the specific provision of the

14 Other financial liabilities As at March 31,2021As at March 31, 2022Particulars CurrentNon-CurrentCurrentNon-Current
0.04

Interest Payable 
Payable to Employees 
Payable for Capital goods 
Total

15.50
47.29

29.17
24.76

62.7953.97

15 Provisions As at March 31,2021As at March 31, 2022Particulars CurrentNon-CurrentCurrentNon-Current
3.3616.44

13.35
5.2022.41

17.08
Gratuity
Provision for leave encashment 
Provision for expiry
Provision for leave travel Allowances (LTA) 
Provision for tax

3.325.01
0.030.03
5.264.64

42.7242.72
54.7029.7957.6139.49

i
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(I) Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS -19 "Employee Benefits", of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

.... company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for 
a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination is the employees last drawn basic salary 
per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The company’s gratuity liability is

following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and 
amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

The

The

As at March 31, As at Ma rch 31, 
2022Particulars 2021

Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss
Current Service cost 
Interest expense 
Total

4.384.33
0.961.14
5.345.47

Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to change in economic assumption
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss due to Experience on DBO
Total

0.09(0.45)
(1.85)4.83
(176)4.38

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Benefits Paid
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss -----
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year -----

The principal assumptions used as at the balance sheet date for purpose of actuarial valuations were as follow 
Financial Assumptions 
Discount Rate 
Salary Increase Rate

16.2219.79
4.384.33
0.961.14

(2.03)
(1.76)4.38
19.7927.61

i- 6.30%
6.00%

6.70%
6.00%

i:

Demographic Assumptions 
Mortality Rate

i-
IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate
IALM (2012-14) 

Ultimate

Age Based: Upto Age Based: Upto 
30 years-10%, 31 30 years-10%, 31 
to 44 years -14%, to 44 years -14%, 

above 44 years - above 44 years -

Withdrawal Rate

25%25%

58 Years58 Years
Retirement age

The rate 
government bonds.
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality 
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end 
of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on

Defined Benefit Obligation 
Discount rate
a. Discount rate - 50 basis points
b. Discount rate + 50 basis points

20.27
19.33

28.17
27.07

Salary increase rate
a. Rate - 50 basis points
b. Rate + 50 basis points

19.33
20.27

27.06
28.17

/Vr^/ / ■ ’A
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumptions would clear in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

presenting the above sensitivity analysis,, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
'which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability

Further more, in 
projected credit method at the end of the reporting period
recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Risk Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as

(i) investment Risk - For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair 
value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result 
in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the mter-valuation period.

(ii) Market Risk (Discount Rate) -
The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An ..... . „ .
benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed

to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date. _ . „ . ..
(iii) Longevity Risk - The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after . Typically for the 

benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.

l'V) Sakary 'lncrease Assumption: Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation , will result in increase to the Obligation at 
a rate that is higher than expected
Attrition / Withdrawal Assumption: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption .than the benefits will be paid 
earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

II) The disclosure of provisions movement as required by Ind AS 37 is as follows

Market risk is a collective term forTisks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets.
increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan

2020-212021-22
Particulars
Provision for Expiry 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Provision made during the year 
Utilization during the year

0.03
0.03

0.030.03
Balance at the end of the year

16 Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables As at March 31,
2021

As at March 31,
2022Particulars

Trade Payables
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises #
- Others

58.69
993.41

16.38
402.73

1,052.10419.11
Total
Trade payables and acceptances are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 0-120 days. 

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under M5MED Act, 2006_________________
As at March 31,

2021
As at March 31,

2022Particulars

58.6916.38
Principal amount due (Including capital creditors)
Interest due on above
Amount paid in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

- Principal amount paid beyond appointed day
- Interest paid thereon
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding year

0.03

0.01
0.04

obtained details from creditors who are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. To
amounts due to the creditors who are registered under

# The Company has
the extent that the Company has received information it has evaluated that there are no 
the said Act beyond the period of 45 days. The said information has been relied upon by the auditors.

&
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(a) As at March 31,2022
OthersMSME

Range of O/s period DisputedUndisputedDisputedUndisputed
5.85Unbilled 

Not Due 
Less than 1 year
1- 2 years
2- 3 year 
> 3 years

301.68
88.21

14.42
1.96

2.60
3.86
0.53

402.7316.38Total

(b) As at March 31, 2021
OthersMSME

Range of O/s period DisputedUndisputedDisputedUndisputed
5.00Unbilled 

Not Due 
Less than 1 year
1- 2 years
2- 3 year 
> 3 years

863.29
109.41

58.69

7.07
1.59
7.05

993.4158.69Total

17 Other Non-financial liabilities
As at March 31,2021As at March 31, 2022Particulars

CurrentNon- CurrentCurrentNon- Current
130.7180.08Duties and Taxes Payable 

Other Payables 
Total

1.892.35
132.6082.43

18 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021Particulars 2022‘i .
222.69t»Uv

Provision for taxation (Net of taxes paid) 222.69
iff

19 Revenue from Operations (Gross)-W'- 2020-212021-22
- Particularsi*

Sale of Products
- Nutraceuticals
- Others

r 10,121.939,319.25
19.66

Other operating revenues 
Miscellaneous Income (Operational)

Total

(a) Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS -115 "Revenue Recognition Disclosures", of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
Sale to a single customer M/s Fashion Suiting's Pvt. Ltd. Is Rs. 9,335.48 Lacs. (P.Y:Rs. 10,109.48 lacs.) Therefore there is no disaggregation of 
product data.

6.7413.26
10,128.679,352.17

20 Other Income 2020-212021-22
Particulars 109.20322.30
Interest Income
Interest Income on Financial Assets at amortised cost 
Profit on Sale of Mutual fund Investment 
Miscellaneous Income ( Non Operational)
Total

2.252.35
41.840.40

0.32
153.29325.37m

* v,
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21 Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
2020-212021-22Particulars

Raw Materials Consumed 
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases (Net of Discounts) 
Less: Closing Stock

372.08
1,030.84
(449.23)

449.23
1,042.48
(748.06) 953.69743.65

Packing Materials Consumed 
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases (Net of Discounts) 
Less: Closing Stock

53.83
130.94
(38.31)

38.31
88.66

(18.40) 146.46108.57

1,100.15852.22Total

22 Purchases of Traded Goods

2020-212021-22Particulars
4,478.194,421.68Nutraceutical Products 

Total
4,478.194,421.68

23 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods(FG), Work-in-progress(WIP) and Traded Goods

2020-212021-22Particulars
Traded Goods 

Stock at commencement 
Less: - Stock at closing

606.03
(848.32)

848.32
(940.97) (242.29)(92.65)

Manufactured Goods in Hand 
Stock at commencement 
Less:-Stock at closing

351.84
(317.93)

317.93
(232.60) 33.9185.33

Work in Progress 
Stock at commencement 
Less: - Stock at closing

23.81
(21.93)

21.93
(11.98)

4!v 1.889.95

(206.49)2.63Total

24 Employee Benefits Expenses\£~ 2020-212021-22Particulars 415.63
14.64

423.49
14.94

Salaries, Bonus, Perquisites etc. 
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 
Gratuity Expenses 
Staff Welfare Expenses 
Recruitment And Training

*
5.345.47
7.898.08

0.75

443.50452.73Total

25 Finance Cost 2020-212021-22Particulars 26.54
Interest on income tax 
Interest on MSME 
Finance Cost on lease Liability

0.04
5.255.21

31.795.25

26 Depreciation and Amortisation
2020-212021-22Particulars 159.33

27.31
163.53

25.99
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 
Amortisation of Right to Use Asset

Total

2.682.68
189.32192.20

5)4O
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Z7 Other Expenses 2020-212021-22Particulars 6.275.61Remuneration to Auditors 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Power and Fuel
Consumption of stores and spares
Insurance
Rent
Freight Charges
Forwarding and Distribution Charges 
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income. 
Clinical Trial and Bio-Equivalence Study 
Laboratory expenses and analytical Charges 
Communication Expenses 
Travelling Expenses 
Professional fees 
Printing and stationery 
Security Charges
Intellectual property right expenses 
Water Charges
Books, Subscription & Software 
Sales and Other Marketing expenses 
Bank Charges 
GST Expense
Corporate Social responsibility 
MTM loss on Mutual Fund 
Political contributions 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total

68.99
175.97

19.38
14.25
76.23

46.97
171.52

22.49
13.68
78.70

8.722.64
281.51267.59

18.16 9.13
4.53

12.219.14
5.076.67
9.5633.75

27.73 56.89
5.425.49

23.4219.25
2.10

1.182.41
2.922.93

250.53639.97
0.030.17

14.78
26.19

17.62
43.00

0.04
100.0040.00

2.691.00
1,175.901,478.59

Other Expenses (Contd ) 2020-212021-22
Particulars
Details of:

1 Remuneration to Auditors:
Audit fees including Tax audit fees 
Certification fees 
Tax matters

r. 4.854.50
1.08. 1.420.03

6.275.61

2 Repairs and Maintenance: 
' Building 

Machinery 
Others

27.14
30.62
11.22

10.66
28.10i

;>■ 8.21
68.9946.97

28 Disclosure on CSR Activity:
company is covered under section 135 of the companies act, the following disclosure is made with regard to CSR activities.-The

2020-212021-22
Particulars 25.00

25.00
42.96
43.00

1 Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year.
2 Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 

- Ongoing
-Otherthan ongoing

2 Amount spent during the year on:
(a) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(b) On purposes other than (a) above

Total
3 Shortfall / (Excess) at the end of the year,
4 Total of previous years shortfall,
5 Reason for shortfall-

25.0043.00

26.1943.00
26.19
(1.19)

43.00
(0.04)
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6 Nature of CSR activities- 2020-212021-22
Particulars

(a) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, 
promoting health care including preventive health 
care and sanitation

16.19
43.00

10.00
(b) Promoting Education
(c) Setting up homes & hostels for women & orphans
(e) Rural development project
(f) Setting up public libraries

7 Details of Transaction with Related Parties Are

43.00
Prabhat Foundation

Since there is no unspent amount towards CSR obligation for the year, no provision is created.8

29 Tax Expense 2020-212021-22
Particulars 586.76

309.47
610.00
(41.77)Current Tax 

Deferred Tax
Short / (Excess) tax provision for earlier years (3.46)

892.77568.23

reconciliation between the provision of income tax of the Company and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income taxA. The
rate to profit before taxes is as follows Year ended March Year ended March

31. 2021Particulars 31. 2022
3,069.60

29.12%
893.87
(56.04)
97.61

(313.34)
(34.82)

(0-51)
586.76

2,272.25
25.17%
571.92
(43.63)
74.86

Profit/(Loss) before Income taxes 
Enacted tax fates in India (%) 
Computed expected tax expenses 
Effect of deductible expenses 
Effect of non- deductible expenses 
MAT Credit availment 
Tax Incentives 
Others
Income tax expenses - Net

6.85
610.00

B. Tax liability as per Minimum Alternate Tax on book profits 
Minimum Alternate Tax rate 
Computed tax liability on book profits 
Tax effect of adjustments on book profit 
Others
Minimum Alternate Tax on Book Profit

17.47%
536.32

(0.68)

535.64

586.76610.00
Higher of A or B

C. Reconciliation of Deferred Tax
Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities in relation to:

Particulars
Recognized in 
Profit and Loss

ClosingRecognized in OCIOpening
216.37

(0.06)
(10.51)

(0.06)
320.69

226.88Property, Plant and Equipment 
Mark to market loss on Financial Asset 
MAT credit available 
Employee benefits 
Right of Use Asset

(320.69)

0.68(0.65)1.33
216.99309.47(92.48)As at March 31, 2021 181.21(35.16)216.37

(0.06)
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Mark to market loss on Financial Asset 
MAT credit available 
Remeasurement of Financial Asset 
Employee benefits

0.06

(157)
(5.56)

(1.57)
(4.46)
(0.65)

(41.77)

(110)
0.030.68Right of Use Asset 174.12(1.10)216.99As at March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax recognised in profit & loss is lower during the year by Rs. 27.33 Lacs due to tax rate changes

t\l
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30 Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard - IND AS 33 "Earning Per Share" of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. 
The earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax by weighted average no. of shares outstanding for basic & diluted EPS.

Year endedYear ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars

2,176.83
2,176.83

40,50,000

1,704.01
1,704.01

40,50,000

(I) Profit after tax
(ii) Profit after tax and exceptional Items 
Opening equity shares outstanding (Nos.in Lakhs)
Add:- issued during the year (Nos.in Lakhs)
Closing equity shares outstanding (Nos.)
(iii) Weighted avg no. of shares outstanding (Nos.) (Basic)
(iv) Weighted avg no. of shares outstanding (Nos.) (Diluted)
(v) Nominal value of equity share (Rs)
(vi) Basic EPS (ii/iii) (Rs)
(vii) Diluted EPS (ii/iv) (Rs)

40,50,000
40,50,000
40,50,000

10.00
53.75
53.75

40,50,000
40,50,000
40,50,000

10.00
42.07
42.07

31 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS -116 "Lease"
i) Following is carrying value of right of use assets recognised and the movements thereof during the year ended March 31,2022

TotalLandParticulars
62.9362.93Balance as on April, 2020 

Additions during the year 
Deletion during the year 
Depreciation of Right of use assets 
Balance as at March 31,2021 
Additions during the year 
Deletion during the year 
Depreciation of Right of use assets 
Balance as at March 31,2022

2.482.48
60.4560.45

2.682.68
57.7757.77

ii) The following is the carrying value of lease liability on the date of transition and movement thereof during the year ended March 31,2022

'nV'-W Year EndedYear Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021Particulars

58.7858.37Balance as at April,1 
Additions during the year 
Finance cost accrued during the year 
Deletions
Payment of lease liabilities 
Balance as at March 31,. -

5.295.21"ixt,
, t *'

5.705.70At

58.3757.88i

0.490.53Current portion of Lease liability 
Non Current portion of Lease liability 57.4356.90

57.9257.43

iii) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

FY 2020-21FY 2021-22Particulars
5.705.70Total cash outflow for leases

iv) The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:
Year Ended

March 31, 2021
Year Ended

March 31, 2022Particulars

5.705.70Less than one year 
One to five years 
More than five years

28.50
113.92

28.50
108.22

148.12142.42Total

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations 
related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. P

Z
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32 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures", of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
Refer Annexure A

33 Analytical Ratios as per requirements of Schedule III are given in Annexure B '

34 Contingent liabilities and Commitments

A) Contingent Liabilities
Year ended 

March 31,2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2022Particulars
169.21

14.62
11.15

185.86Indirect tax demand 
Direct tax demand 
Bank Guarantees given 5.37

194.98191.23Total

-wB) Commitments
Year ended 

March 31,2021
Year ended 

March 31, 2022Particulars
19.9036.49Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account.

35 Segment Reporting
Disclosure as required by IND AS 108 "Operating Segment", of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201S.

The company operates in a single segment, viz. nutraceutical products. There is therefore no separate reportable segment under Indian 
Accounting Standard 108 on Segment Reporting.

Sales is to a single customer M/s Fashion Suiting’s Pvt. Ltd. Is Rs. 9,335.48 Lacs (P.Y Rs. 10,109.48 lacs.)

36 Financial Instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2021 and March 31,2019 is as follows:

Fair ValueCarrying ValueParticulars
Year ended March 

31, 2021
Year ended March 

31,2022
Year ended MarchYear ended March 

31, 2022 31, 2021
* Financial assets 

Amortised Cost 
Investments 
Loans 
Others
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents

650.90
3,756.95

516.96
920.79

5,253.27
51.14

781.34
363.74

650.90
3,756.95

516.96
920.79

5,253.27
51.14

781.34
363.74

*
if’1

FVTPL
Investments
Mutual fund investments 40.7140.71

FVTOCI 
Investments 
Equity Instruments *

5,886.306,449.495,886.306,449.49Total Financial Assets

Financial liabilities 
Amortised Cost 
Trade payables 
Lease liabilities 
Others

1,052.10
57.92
62.79

419.11
57.43
53.97

1,052.10
57.92
62.79

419.11
57.43
53.97

1,172.811,172.81 | 530.51530.51Total Financial Liabilities

* In the absence of financial statements of Panjon Pharma Limited since several years, the management in the past had considered the fair value 
at least equal to the carrying value in its books. However, in the year 2019-20, due to continued non-availability of the financial statements and 
there being no further obligations as a shareholder, the Company has considered the fair value at Rs. Nil and accordingly accounted the 
under Other Comprehensive Income in the said financial statements. The fair value hierarchy for this valuation change is 3 based on

same
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The management has assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, book overdrafts and other 
current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidatio'nsaie-.'

37 Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and 
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an 
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair Value measurement using
Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs (Level 3)

Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1)

Particulars Total

Date of Valuation - March 31,2022
Financial assets measured at fair value Through Profit & Loss 
Mutual funds - Growth plan

Financial assets measured at fair value Through
Other Comprehensive Income 
Unlisted Equity Investments *
Total financial assets measured at fair value

Date of Valuation - March 31, 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value Through Profit and Loss 
Mutual funds - Growth plan 40.7140.71

£’} Financial assets measured at fair value Through
Other Comprehensive Income 
Unlisted Equity Investments *

40.7140.71Financial assets measured at fair value

* In the year 2019-20 f due to continued non-availability of the financial statements and there being no further obligations as a shareholder, the 
Company has considered the fair value of investment at Rs. Nil and accordingly accounted the same under Other Comprehensive Income in the 
said financial statements. The fair value hierarchy for this valuation change is 3 based on unobservable inputs.r •. »■

38 Financial Risk Factors
The Company's business activities are exposed to a Market/Business risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability business risks 
and seek to minimize potential adverse effects of these risks on its business and financial performance.

(i) Business/Market Risk
The primary business/market risk to the Company is the single customer risk. The company business is dependent on single customer. The 
Company, however, is designing various marketing strategy to reduced risk from dependence on any single customer as that can effect the 

generated to company. The Company also continuously forays into different markets to reduce its dependence on any particular country 
or customer group.

(il) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. This exposure is principally from the Company's receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business. The company has established norms for stage wise payments to lower the exposure.

revenue

(iii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its 
liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation.

As of 31st March 2022 the Company has working capital of Rs. 3308.84 Lacs (31 March 2021: Rs. 6093.37 Lacs) including cash and cash equivalents 
and other bank balances of Rs. 363.74 Lacs (31 March 2021: Rs. 920.79 Lacs). Working capital is calculated as current as5.ets-nji^is,^urrent
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(iv) Currency Risk
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the profit and loss account, where any transaction references 
more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity. However, the 
currency risk to the Company is significantly low as there are'no material transactions in foreign currency.

39 Financial Risk Management

(i) Management of liquidity risk
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The 
Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that is generated from operations is sufficient to 
meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk is perceived to be low.
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at 
the Balance sheet date:

More than 12 
months

Less than 12 
months

TotalCarrying amountParticulars
S*

As at March 31, 2022
419.11
136.40

6.99412.12
136.40

419.11
136.40

Trade payables 
Other liabilities
As at March 31, 2021 1,052.10

195.39
15.711,036.39

195.39
1,052.10

195.39
Trade payables 
Other liabilities

40 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes paid-up equity share capital, share premium and all other equity reserves 
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust its dividend payment ratio to shareholders, return 

fresh shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by its total capital.
financial covenants. To maintain or 
capital to shareholders or issue
The Company includes within its net debt the interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents.

March 31,2021March 31,2022Particulars*
Borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents 
Mutual Fund Investment 
Net debt 
Total Equity 
Capital and net debt 
Gearing ratio__________

(920.79)
(40.71)

(961.50)
8,440.93
8,440.93

(363.74)

V
(363.74)

10,141.67
10,141.67

■(.

NANA«*.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets the financial 
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial 
covenants would permit the lending institutions to immediately call back the loans and borrowings. There have been no interest-bearing loans 
and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing the capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,

2021. X~\

The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement, stateryent of sigqjficant accounting policies and the other notes forms an 
integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the

41
mded March 31, 2022

Forland on\eha(f of Jhe Board of Directors
/!>W

As per our report of even date attached 
For Natvarlal Vepari & Co.
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 106971W

Q.
Arvind 5:a. J/Wnjfetime Director 
(DIN 06852066) (DIN 00029067)

N Jayendranj 
Partner 
M.No. 40441 
Mumbai: May 16, 2022
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Annexure 1 (Refer Note no 32)
A. List of Related Parties ^
Related Party Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard - Ind AS 24 " 
Related Party Transactions" of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule

1. Entities where control exists
a. I pea Laboratories Limited (Holding Compnay w.e.f June 10, 2021)
b. Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd - Promotor of Holding Company
c. Paschim Chemicals Limited
d. Panjon Pharma Limited
e. Saraswati Entertainment Private Limited

2. Key Management Personnel
a. Arvind Sakhi - Director
b. Prakash Kothari - Director
c. Manish Jain - Director
d. Praveen Kataria - Director
e. Rajesh Yadav - Director (Resigned w.e.f July 29, 2021)
f. MilindSarwate-CEO
f. Atul Jain - Director (w.e.f. January, 17 2022)
g. Sushil Kumra - Director (w.e.f. January, 17 2022)

3. Entities where Key Managerial Person are Interested 
a. Kataria Plastics Private Limited

4. Other Related Parties (w.e.f. June, 10, 2021)
a. Lyka Labs Limited
b. Prabhat Foundation

B. Transactions with Related parties for the year ended on 31st March, 2022
(Rsin Lacs)

Entities where Key 
Managerial Person 

are Interested

Entities where 
control Exists

Key Management 
Personnel

TotalOther Related Parties

Mar 21Mar 22Mar 21Mar 22Mar 21Mar 22Mar 21Mar 22Mar 21Mar 22
Distribution Charges:

222.60191.14222.60191.14Ipca Laboratories Ltd
222.60191.14222.60191.14Total

| Rent Payment:
Ipca Laboratories Ltd 
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd

19.2916.35
16.97

19.2916.35
16.97

19.2933.3219.2933.32Total

Donation Given
43.0043.00Prabhat Foundation
43.0043.00Total

Loan Given
1,000.001,000.00Kataria Plastics Private Limited 

Lyka Laboratories Limited 5,000.005,000.00
1,000.005,000.005,000.001,000.00Total

Loan / Advances Repaid
1,000.001,000.00Kataria Plastics Private Limited
1,000.001,000.00Total

Interest Received
129.45129.45• Lyka Laboratories Limited 

Kataria Plastics Private Limited 4.834.83
4.83129.45129.454.83Total
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Annexure 1 (Refer Note no 32)
A. List of Related Parties * * y ,
Related Party Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard -Jnd AS 24 " 
Related Party Transactions" of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 
Remuneration to Directors & KMP

f

32.8039.8832.8039.88Mr. Arvind Sakhi
(Ind. Provident Fund contribution) 
Mr. Milind Sarwate 68.6882.9468.6882.94

101.48122.82101.48122.82Total

Sitting Fees to Directors
0.100.10Sushil Kumar Kumra 

AtulJain 
Prakash Kothari 
ManishJain

0.100.10
0.100.10
0.100.10
0.400.40Total

Balance as on 31st March
Loans Receivable

5,000.005,000.00Lyka Laboratories Limited
5,000.005,000.00Total

Payable
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd 1.951.95

42.3223.1542.3223.15Ipca Laboratories Ltd
42.3225.1042.32 |[Total 25.10
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TROPHIC WELLNESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Note - 33 Annexure B- Analytical Ratios

2021-2022
% of Reason for varianceRatio Ratio

(2021-22) (2020-21) Variation
! Numerator/

Denominator
RatioSr.

No.

27.98% Reduction in current assets due to conversion of
Fixed deposit into ICO in current year which is 
shown as non current asssets. Current liabilities are 
also reduced

4.996.39Current Asset1 Current ratio
Current Liabilities

0.006 0.007 -17.47%Total Debtstf2 Debt-Equity ratio
Shareholders Equity

333.58 402.35 -17.09%Earnings available for debt3 Debt Service Coverage 
ratio service

Debt Serviced

B Debts includes Lease Liability
41.75% -41.43% Reduction sales and increse in overheads24.46%Net Profits after taxes -

Preference Dividend 
Average Shareholder's Equity

4 Return on Equity ratio ( 
ROE)

3.48 -16.52% Inventory has been increased by 16% due to
decrease in sales due decrease in stock inventory 
days reduction by FSBL and ambiguity about the 
new law related to Direct selling

2.91Cost of goods sold5 Inventory Turnover 
Ratio

Average Inventory

14.39 17.51 -17.85%Revenue6 Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Average Accounts Receivable

30.12% Reduction in Trade payables at year end due to
lower purchase in the month of Mar-22 compared 
to Mar-21. Further increase in purchase rates 

_______resulting into increase in purchase value._______

5.807.55Net Credit Purchases7 Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Average Trade Payables

2.24 -11.49%1.99Revenue8 Net capital turnover 
ratio

Average working capital

i 24.33% 30.33% -19.77%Net Profit after Tax9 Net profit ratio
Net Sales

22.08% 35.51% -37.84% Earning before interest and taxes reduced due to
lower sales & increase in overheads.

Earning before interest and10 Return on Capital 
employed (ROCE) taxes

Capital Employed

1.82% 76.60% This year we have not made any additional
investment in Mutual Fund 8t we have just sold the 
units outstanding as on 1st April 2021, thus this 
ratio can not be compared the previous year there 
were many transaction of sales & purchase

(Mvrm - MVfTOI - Sum (C(tm 3.21%11 Return on Investment 
(ROI)

(MV(T0) + Sum (W(t) * C(t)l)

Where:
T1 = End of time period
TO = Beginning of time period
t = Specific date falling between T1 and TO
MV(T1) = Market Value at T1
MV(T0) = Market Value at TO
C(t) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date
W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (i.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day't', calculated as [T1 -1) / T1 
Companies may provide ROI separately for each asset class (e.g., equity, fixed income, money market, etc.).
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